
 
 

 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Monday 18 January 2021 at 6.30 pm 
Virtual Meeting - Online 

 
 

 

Members:  Councillor Woodward (Chairman), Councillors Thomson (Vice-Chairman), Atwood, 
Bland, Chapelard, Hayward, Morton, Neve, Ms Palmer, Pound, Scholes and 
Stanyer 

Quorum:  3 Members 

 
 

1   Apologies for Absence 
To receive any apologies for absence. 

(Pages 5 - 6) 

2   Declarations of Interest 
To receive any declarations of interest by members in items on 
the agenda in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct. 
For any advice on declarations of interest, please contact the 
Monitoring Officer before the meeting. 

(Pages 7 - 8) 

3   Notification of Persons Registered to Speak 
To note any Visiting Members or members of the public wishing to 
speak, of which due notice has been given in accordance with 
Council Procedure Rule 18 or 19, and which item(s) they wish to 
speak on. 

(Pages 9 - 10) 

4   Minutes of the meeting dated 23 November 2020 
To approve the minutes of a previous meeting as a correct record. 
The only issue relating to the minutes that can be discussed is 
their accuracy. 

(Pages 11 - 16) 

5   Items Called-In 
To consider any items ‘Called-In’ under Overview and Scrutiny 
Procedure Rule 13, details of which will have been circulated to 
Members under separate cover. 

(Pages 17 - 18) 

6   Portfolio Holder Update - Sustainability 
To consider and decide on the recommendations set out in the 
associated report. 

(Pages 19 - 26) 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



 
 

 

7   Budget 2021/2022 and Medium Term Financial Strategy 
Update 
To consider the proposals to Full Council set out in the associated 
report. 

(Pages 27 - 60) 

8   Poverty Task and Finish Group: Update 
To receive a verbal update. 

(Pages 61 - 62) 

9   Work Programme 
To consider the Committee’s future work programme. 

(Pages 63 - 64) 

10   Urgent Business 
To consider any other items which the Chairman decides are 
urgent, for the reasons to be stated, in accordance with Section 
100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972. 

(Pages 65 - 66) 

11   Date of the next meeting 
To note that the next scheduled meeting is Monday 29 March 
2021. 

(Pages 67 - 68) 

 

 
 
Mark O'Callaghan Town Hall 
Scrutiny and Engagement Officer ROYAL TUNBRIDGE WELLS 
Tel:      (01892) 554219 Kent   TN1 1RS 
Email:  Mark.O'Callaghan@TunbridgeWells.gov.uk  
 

 

Watch Live 
 

Watch this meeting online, live via the Council’s website. 
Archived reordings of previous meetings are also available. 
 

Visit   www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/webcasts 

 

 

mod.gov app – go paperless 
 

Easily download, annotate and keep all committee paperwork on your 
mobile device using the mod.gov app – all for free!. 
 

Visit   www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/modgovapp   

Page 2

http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/webcasts
http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/modgovapp
http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/modgovapp
http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/modgovapp


 
 

 
During the Coronavirus outbreak, and the recovery which follows, the way we conduct 
meetings will change. This page summarises the process. If you have any questions 
please contact Democratic Services via the contact details on the previous page. 
 
Attending meetings 
 
Meetings will not be held in the town hall, instead they will be held virtually via video conference 
and webcast live online. 
 
Any member of the public may watch/listen to the meetings online live via our website on the 
relevant committee’s meeting page. A recording of the meeting will also be available shortly 
after the end of the meeting. 
 
All meetings and agenda are open to the public except where confidential information is being 
discussed. The agenda of the meeting will identify whether any meeting or part of the meeting is 
not open to the public and explain why. 
 
 
Speaking at meetings 
 
Members of the public are encouraged to participate and those wishing to comment on an 
agenda item will need to register with Democratic Services in advance. Registration opens 
when the agenda is published and closes at 4pm on the last working day before the meeting.  
 
There may be up to 4 speakers per agenda item and speakers have up to 3 minutes each. 
 
Once registered, speakers may submit their comments in writing to Democratic Services no 
later than 4pm on the last working day before the meeting. Your comments will then be read 
during the meeting by an independent officer. Alternatively, speakers may join the meeting 
online or by telephone. Speakers will need to provide contact details and the clerk will provide 
joining instructions to enable them to speak. 
 
Comments should be in the form of a statement giving your opinion on the matter. Members of 
the committee may not answer questions or get into a debate with you. 
 
Further details are available on the website (www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk) or from Democratic 
Services. 
 

If you require this information in another format 
please contact us, call 01892 526121 or email 

committee@tunbridgewells.gov.uk 

Page 3

http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/
mailto:committee@tunbridgewells.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page  

1 of 1 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Apologies for Absence 

 

Apologies for Absence  

For Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 18 January 2021

 

Procedural Item 

To receive any apologies for absence. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 1



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page  

1 of 1 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Declarations of Interest 

 

Declarations of Interest 

For Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 18 January 2021

 

Procedural Item 

To receive any declarations of interest by members in items on the agenda in accordance 

with the Members’ Code of Conduct. For any advice on declarations of interest, please 

contact the Monitoring Office before the meeting. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page  

1 of 1 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Notification of Persons Registered to Speak 

 

Notification of Persons Registered to 

Speak 

For Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 18 January 2021

 

Procedural Item 

To note any Visiting Members or members of the public wishing to speak, of which due 

notice has been given in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 18 or 19, and which 

item(s) they wish to speak on. 

 

Information for members of the public wishing to speak 

Members of the public are encouraged to participate and those wishing to comment on an 

agenda item will need to register with Democratic Services in advance. Registration opens 

when the agenda is published and closes at 4pm on the last working day before the meeting. 

There may be up to 4 speakers per agenda item and speakers have up to 3 minutes each. 

Once registered, speakers may submit their comments in writing to Democratic Services no 

later than 4pm on the last working day before the meeting. Your comments will then be read 

during the meeting by an independent officer.  

Alternatively, speakers may join the meeting online or by telephone. Speakers will need to 

provide contact details and the clerk will provide joining instructions to enable them to speak. 

Comments should be in the form of a statement giving your opinion on the matter. Members 

of the committee may not answer questions or get into a debate with you. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 
 

 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Monday, 23 November 2020 
 

Present: Councillor Chris Woodward (Chairman) 
Councillors Thomson (Vice-Chairman), Atwood, Bland, Chapelard, Hayward, Morton, 

Neve, Ms Palmer, Pound, Scholes and Stanyer 
 

Officers in Attendance: William Benson (Chief Executive), Lee Colyer (Director of Finance, 
Policy and Development (Section 151 Officer)) and Mark O'Callaghan (Scrutiny and 
Engagement Officer) 
 

Other Members in Attendance: Councillors Atkins, Dawlings, Fairweather, Hamilton and 
Scott 
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

OSC56/20 
 

There were no apologies for absence. 
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

OSC57/20 
 

There were no disclosable pecuniary or significant other interests declared at 
the meeting. 
 

NOTIFICATION OF PERSONS REGISTERED TO SPEAK 
 

OSC58/20 
 

Councillors Hamilton and Scott were registered as Visiting Members on item 
OSC61/20. There were no members of the public registered to speak. 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING DATED 12 OCTOBER 2020 
 

OSC59/20 
 

Members reviewed the minutes. No amendments were proposed. 
 

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting dated 12 October 2020 be 
approved as a correct record. 
 

ITEMS CALLED-IN 
 

OSC60/20 
 

There were no items which had been called-in. 
 

FIVE YEAR PLAN UPDATE 
 

OSC61/20 
 

The Chairman brought this item forward on the agenda. 
 

William Benson (Chief Executive) introduced the report set out in the agenda 
pack. 
 

Councillor Hamilton had registered to speak, comments included: 

• Raised at both the Planning and Transportation and Communities and 
Economic Development Cabinet Advisory Boards, specifying the 
Memorial Field as the location for the new Community Centre should 
be removed from the document. 

• To be clear, the request was just to remove the Memorial Field as the 
location, not the idea of supporting development of a Community 
Centre. 

• The Memorial Field was open space that was valued by the 
community. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



2 
 
 

 
 

• The was no planning consent for the Memorial Field or a plan B if 
planning consent was not granted. 

• The results of a Parish Poll was that the Memorial Field was not the 
right location for the new Community Centre. 

• The Borough was only playing a supporting role, the decision was 
ultimately for the Town Council as it concerned its own land. 

• Open space was of unquestionable value and relevance to the issues 
of well being, mental health and those suffering from domestic abuse. 

• In other areas, land had been acquired by Councils to protect it as 
open space but this had not happened in Paddock Wood.   

• Given the current circumstances the Council had an opportunity to 
review the views of residents and changes in market force. 

• Members were asked to support the removal of the Memorial Field as 
the location of the community facility from the TWBC document. 

 
Councillor Scott had registered to speak, comments included: 

• There were a number of demographic changes with consequences for 
planning. The growth and numbers of people, particularly the 
Council’s reduction in the share of 20-30 year olds and the substantial 
increase in residents who were over 65 years of age. Housing growth 
had been slower, but prices had risen. 

• Very happy to see the reference to light electric vehicles but there was 
a need to consider the type of vehicles that would be used. 

• Public consultation with wide engagement was very important. 

• Town centres would need to be made more attractive, to attract more 
visitors but without increasing congestion. 

• Action was needed on the Civic Centre and the Town Hall. 

• A summer festival in 2022 would help morale and brighten the moods 
of residents. 

• The Council must attract new investment and encourage activities. 

• The Council must ensure that projects that were put forward were 
deliverable and welcomed by residents. 

• The Council must also deliver on its green agenda. 

• The report should be recommended but with the proviso that the 
comments raised were emphasised.   

 
Discussion included the following matters: 

• The Town Hall and the Assembly Hall Theatre would be included in 
the  project portfolio to be taken forward.  

• All contract work undertaken by the Council had complied with the 
constitution, financial procedure rules and contract procedure rules.   

• If the Council had entered into a new contract, the details would 
appear on the contract register.  

• The confirmation of Covid-19 Marshals was done as an extension to 
an existing contract, not a new contract. 

• The Council’s Gold Group was linked to the Covid-19 Panel. Group 
Leaders would be consulted on decisions taken and those that have 
been proposed to ensure that there was a political awareness of the 
actions that officers were taking during this time of emergency. 

• The Council had been clear that it would support Paddock Wood 
Town Council. It had agreed that the Memorial Field as a specific 
location would be removed from the document. 

• The themes that had emerged and included in the report had come 
from the Councillor Convention held in 2019. 

Page 12

Agenda Item 4



3 
 
 

 
 

• Retrospective issues would be considered as part of the Plan. It was 
understood that funding had already been given to address some of 
the sewage issues currently experienced in Paddock Wood. In 
addition the Council was looking to secure some Highways 
infrastructure provision and  was also looking to improve drainage and 
flooding at the bottom of the Pantiles. 

• The use of Hydrogen as an alternative fuel source was something 
being considered by the Climate Emergency Panel. In addition these 
were provisional priorities which the Council would be exploring and 
which would be subject to further extensive engagement and 
consultation.   

• Work on the Cultural and Creative Industries framework would be 
important, particularly post Covid-19. As part of the work for the Local 
Plan, the Council had commissioned further work on the town centre. 

• Leisure in the town centre was included in the Sports and Active 
Recreation Strategy and the Council’s planning policies. It made 
commercial good sense to have these facilities. 

• A request was made that the Discretionary Housing Payments Policy 
be given more prominence with more importance given to identifying 
those residents that might require help. 

• There were a few suggested topics for future Member Briefings: 
o Benefits Take Up Campaign. 
o Moratorium on Council Tax Arrears Court Action – particularly 

the use of debt collection agencies. 
o Simplification of the Council Tax rebate system. 

• The report included provision which aimed at improving football 
facilities with a new sports hub adjacent to the Hawkenbury 
Recreation Ground. The Council was looking to produce an updated 
business case in 2021. The site at Culverden was a separate matter. 

• The Local Government White Paper had suggested that there might 
be some incentives for Local Government reorganisation, either 
Unitisation or the merging of Local Authorities.  All recent discussions 
with Government were that this was no longer the case.   

• With regards to the Town Hall and the Assembly Hall Theatre, the 
Council had operated very well over the last few months with staff 
adapting very well to new flexible working patterns.   

• The cost of running and maintaining both the Town Hall and the 
Assembly Hall Theatre increased each year. The increasing cost and 
the need to decide on the future of both buildings were the reasons 
the Council had included them as projects that should be taken 
forward as a matter of urgency.   

 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER UPDATE - FINANCE AND GOVERNANCE 
 
OSC62/20 
 

Councillor Dawlings (Portfolio Holder for Finance and Governance) 
introduced the report set out in the agenda, comments included: 

• Officers were working on a budget for 2021 but in something of a 
vacuum as the Government had cancelled its planned budget and its 
three year spending review. 

• The financial statement that would cover only one year was expected 
on Wednesday 25 November 2020. It was not expected that the 
statement would offer much clarity to Local Authority funding. 
 

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



4 
 
 

 
 

• The Council had been recommended not to make any drastic 
decisions to reducing any services but instead to draw down on 
available reserves. And that was what had been planned as part of 
the budget process. 

• This was likely to mean drawing down on about £3m of reserves 
during the course of 2021/22. 

• The Economic Development staff were currently working on 2 
schemes to support businesses – The Local Restrictions Support 
Grant and the Additional Restrictions Grant Discretionary Scheme. 
Applications were available on the website. 

• For the eleventh consecutive year, the Council had received an 
unqualified audit report. 

• The Council had also now received a grant from Government for the 
renovation of 3 properties on Crescent Road. The renovated houses 
would be used to help house the homeless. 

• The Housing Support Scheme and Council Tax Support Scheme had 
both been the subject of a review to reflect the introduction of 
Universal Credit. In addition a new Council Tax Protocol, put together 
in collaboration with the Citizens’ Advice Bureau was about to be 
adopted. 

• For clarity on the financial bail out of Fusion, Fusion were awaiting the 
outcome of a bid for funding from the Government (CIBILS Loan). 
Fusion had now received a loan of £13m. The agreement with the 
Council was that Fusion repay their pre Covid-19 debts, which 
comprised of a management fee for the last financial year, the loan 
interest and capital payments for 2019/20 and 2020/21 and the solar 
panels on the tennis centre for 2019/20 and 2020/21. It was expected 
these payments would be made by the end of March 2021. 

• The Council had offered to provide support of up to £420k to assist in 
the opening of the 3 centres from now until the end of December 
2020. This would be monitored monthly via the provision of their 
management accounts. 

 
Discussion included the following matters: 

• The £420k to Fusion would remain the total amount the Council would 
give regardless that the period between now and the end of the 
financial year had been reduced. 

• The Mid Kent Services were shared services between Tunbridge 
Wells, Swale and Maidstone with staff mainly based in Maidstone. The 
cost of the services were shared on a slightly different basis 
depending on the service. Each service had its own collaboration 
agreement which set out the terms of that collaboration. 

• The partnership would continue until such time as a particular partner 
served sufficient notice that they wished a change to the partnership. 

 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

POVERTY TASK AND FINISH GROUP: TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
OSC63/20 
 

Councillor Pound (Chairman of the Task and Finish Group) introduced the 
report set out in the agenda, comments included: 

• Once some initial work had been undertaken, it was the view the 
Group should meet every fortnight. 

• It was hoped that a report would be brought back to Overview and 
Scrutiny at its meeting in April 2021. 

Page 14

Agenda Item 4



5 
 
 

 
 

• The Group would focus on the top-ten Lower Layer Super Output 
Areas in the Borough. 

• It was the initial view of the Group that it would not be seeking to put 
forward recommendations as to what it thought the Council should do, 
it was more likely that the Group would identify ways in which this 
Council could facilitate other Agencies to take forward actions on 
behalf of the Community. 

• Poverty was assessed against income, employment, education, skills 
and training, health and disability, crime, barriers to housing services 
and the living environment. 

• Poverty didn’t only impact on children, it also impacted upon the 
disabled, single people (particularly single women) and this would all 
be included. 

• The next meeting was scheduled for Tuesday 1 December 2020. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Poverty Task and Finish Group Terms of Reference 
be agreed. 
 

CONSULTATION AND ENGAGEMENT TASK AND FINISH GROUP: UPDATE 
 

OSC64/20 
 

Councillor Hayward (Chairman of the Task and Finish Group) provided a 
verbal update, comments included: 

• Draft Terms of Reference had been circulated to members before the 
meeting. A copy would be published in due course. 

• Given the current exceptional circumstance and the likelihood that the 
way things would be done were likely to change. The view was, the 
work of this Group would be put on the back burner for the time being. 

 
Discussion included the following matters: 

• The membership of the Group had yet to be established. 

• Partners and stakeholders would be welcome on the Group. 

• Councillor Scott and Councillor Woodward expressed an interest in 
joining the Group. 

 
RESOLVED – That the update be noted. 
 

WORK PROGRAMME 
 

OSC65/20 
 

Councillor Woodward presented the Work Programme and outlined the dates 
for forthcoming meetings, comments included: 

• The Budget Update Report that would normally come to this meeting 
had been put back and would be included at the meeting in January 
2021. 

• The next Portfolio Holder update on Sustainability was confirmed for 
the January 2021 meeting.  

 
URGENT BUSINESS 
 

OSC66/20 
 

There was no urgent business for consideration. 
 

DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING 
 

OSC67/20 
 

The next meeting was scheduled for Monday 18 January 2021. 

 
 NOTE: The meeting concluded at 7.55 pm. 
 

Page 15

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page  

1 of 1 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Items Called-In 

 

Items Called-In 

For Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 18 January 2021

 

Procedural Item 

To consider any items ‘Called-In’ under Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rule 13, details of 

which will have been circulated to Members under separate cover. 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page  

1 of 6 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Portfolio Holder Update: Sustainability 

 

Portfolio Holder Update: 

Sustainability  

For Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 18 January 2021

 

Summary 

Lead Member: Councillor Matthew Bailey – Portfolio Holder for Sustainability 

Lead Directors: Paul Taylor – Director of Change and Communities 

Heads of Service: Gary Stevenson – Head of Housing, Health and Environment, Ian 

Hirst – Head of Digital Service and Communications 

Report Author: Mark O’Callaghan – Scrutiny and Engagement Officer 

Classification: Public document (non-exempt) 

Wards Affected: All 

Approval Timetable Date 

Portfolio Holder 21 December 2020 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 18 January 2021 

Recommendations 

Officer recommendations as supported by the Portfolio Holder: 

1. That the Portfolio Holder’s Update be noted.  

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



 

Page  

2 of 6 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Portfolio Holder Update: Sustainability 

 

1. Introduction and Background 

1.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee meetings with the Cabinet members 

throughout the year to discuss the progress made towards the Council’s 

priorities. 

1.2 Statements provided by the Portfolio Holder are attached at Appendix A to the 

report detailing their responsibilities, partnership involvement, plans and 

strategies and projects for the year ahead. 

1.3 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is keen to understand from the Portfolio 

Holder their ambitions for the year ahead and how those ambitions will be 

realised. In particular, Portfolio Holders should focus on how our residents, 

businesses and visitors will see a difference a result of the actions the Council 

has taken. The meetings are an opportunity for the Portfolio Holder, in their own 

words, to explain to the Committee and the public how the Council is making a 

difference to the lives of residents in the Borough. 

Drafting Procedure 

1.4 In a slight change to the process in previous years, the Committee were 

concerned that the scope of the portfolio holder reports was too broad for a 

meaningful examination and they would like the opportunity to focus on a smaller 

number of specific issues. The following procedure was therefore established: 

1.4.1 In the fourth week before the meeting, the Clerk will draft and distribute a copy of 

the relevant portfolio holder statement which includes their standing 

responsibilities as portfolio holders and ask the Portfolio Holder to add any 

details of their forthcoming plans. 

1.4.2 In the third week before the meeting, the Clerk will send the completed 

statements to the members of the Committee and ask them to identify the issues 

they are most interested in. 

1.4.3 In the second week before the meeting, the Clerk will distribute the list of items 

the Committee has identified and the Portfolio Holder may at this stage wish to 

provide further supporting information, copies of strategies, plans, etc. for 

inclusion in the report. 

1.4.4 In the final week before the meeting, any final arrangements will be made. 

Supporting officers may be invited to attend, further supporting documents may 

be submitted. 

Page 20

Agenda Item 6



 

Page  

3 of 6 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Portfolio Holder Update: Sustainability 

 

Meeting Procedure 

1.5 At the meeting the procedure is flexible, this is as much an opportunity for the 

Portfolio Holder to engage with the Committee as for the Committee to scrutinise 

the Portfolio Holder. The following guidance is offered as a general rule to help 

maximise the time. 

1.5.1 Portfolio Holders are invited to spend up to five minutes giving an overview of the 

portfolio and key responsibilities. Information contained in the statement may be 

taken as read but the Portfolio Holder may set out their personal priorities and 

discuss some of the issues which are important but that the Committee has not 

identified as its priorities. 

1.5.2 Up to 10 minutes may be spent on presenting on the issues which have been 

identified by the Committee. 

1.5.3 Any members of the public who have registered to speak will be invited to 

address the Committee after the presentation and before the Committee’s 

questions. 

1.5.4 The majority of the time is expected to be spent on questions and answers. 

Officers may be brought in to provide specific information. 

2. Options Considered 

2.1 The Portfolio Holder’s plans and progress update is for information purposes and 

the Committee will be asked to note the content of the report. However, 

members may wish to ask questions of the Portfolio Holder and, if necessary, 

ask that additional information be provided to the Committee at a later date. 

3. Preferred Option and Reason 

3.1 The Committee and Portfolio Holder will work together to identify the best ways 

of doing things in the future – based on learning from past successes – and how 

the Overview and Scrutiny Committee can help with achieving the Five Year 

Plan. The Committee would also like to provide effective scrutiny, including 

opportunities for public engagement to help ensure that the outcomes provide 

value for money and improvements to public services. 

4. Implementation 

4.1 The views of the Portfolio Holder and the Committee will be on public record 

through the webcast and minutes of the meeting. 

Page 21

Agenda Item 6



 

Page  

4 of 6 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Portfolio Holder Update: Sustainability 

 

5. Appendices and Background Documents 

Appendices: 

• Appendix A: Portfolio Holder Statement: Sustainability 

Exempt appendices (if any): 

• None 

Background Papers: 

• None 

 

Page 22

Agenda Item 6



 

Page  

5 of 6 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Portfolio Holder Update: Sustainability 

 

6. Cross Cutting Issues 

A. Legal (including the Human Rights Act) 

The Local Government Act 2000, section 21 enables an Overview and Scrutiny Committee to 

undertake the following functions: 

(a) Make reports and recommendations to the Executive or Council; 

(b) Review or scrutinise executive decisions; 

(c) Review or scrutinise non-executive decisions; 

(d) Report on any matter affecting the Council’s area. 

The arrangements outlined in this report are in accordance with functions permitted to be 

discharged by the Committee. 

Patricia Narebor, Head of Legal Partnership, 13 November 2020. 

B. Finance and Other Resources 

The report of for information. As there are no decisions from this report there are no 

implications. 

Mark O’Callaghan, Scrutiny and Engagement Officer, 12 November 2020. 

C. Staffing 

The report of for information. As there are no decisions from this report there are no 

implications. 

Mark O’Callaghan, Scrutiny and Engagement Officer, 12 November 2020. 

D. Risk Management 

The report of for information. As there are no decisions from this report there are no 

implications. 

Mark O’Callaghan, Scrutiny and Engagement Officer, 12 November 2020. 

Page 23

Agenda Item 6



 

Page  

6 of 6 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Portfolio Holder Update: Sustainability 

 

E. Environment and Sustainability 

The report of for information. As there are no decisions from this report there are no 

implications. 

Mark O’Callaghan, Scrutiny and Engagement Officer, 12 November 2020. 

F. Community Safety 

The report of for information. As there are no decisions from this report there are no 

implications. 

Mark O’Callaghan, Scrutiny and Engagement Officer, 12 November 2020. 

G. Equalities 

The report of for information. As there are no decisions from this report there are no 

implications. 

Mark O’Callaghan, Scrutiny and Engagement Officer, 12 November 2020. 

H. Data Protection 

The report of for information. As there are no decisions from this report there are no 

implications. 

Mark O’Callaghan, Scrutiny and Engagement Officer, 12 November 2020. 

I. Health and Safety 

The report of for information. As there are no decisions from this report there are no 

implications. 

Mark O’Callaghan, Scrutiny and Engagement Officer, 12 November 2020. 

J. Health and Wellbeing 

The report of for information. As there are no decisions from this report there are no 

implications. 

Mark O’Callaghan, Scrutiny and Engagement Officer, 12 November 2020. 

Page 24

Agenda Item 6



Portfolio Holder Statements 2020-21 

Portfolio Holder for Sustainability, Councillor Matthew Bailey 

Portfolio Holder Responsibilities 

Service Areas: 

• Recycling and waste collection 

• Street cleansing and littering 

• Fly tipping and abandoned 
vehicles 

• Environmental Protection  

• Environmental Health 

• Food Hygiene and Health and 
Safety standards in businesses  

• Corporate Health and Safety 

• Licensing 

• Sustainability 

• Drainage & Flooding 

• Communications 

• Major Projects within Portfolio 

Priority Projects: 

• Public Realm 

• Recycling and Waste Collection 
and Street Cleansing Contract 

Partnerships: 

• Kent Resource Board 

Plans and Strategies: 

• Kent Environment Strategy 

• Air Quality Management Plan 

• Contaminated Land Strategy 

• Communications and 
Engagement Strategy 

Additional Responsibilities 

Other posts held: 

• Chairman of Climate Change Emergency Advisory Panel 

Plans for the year ahead 

CEAP report on plans to reduce TWBC carbon emissions to zero by 2030 

CEAP report on running a Citizens’ Assembly 

Introduction of no-idling zones 

 

Councillor Matthew Bailey 
Matthew.Bailey@TunbridgeWells.gov.uk  

Page 25

Appendix A

mailto:Matthew.Bailey@TunbridgeWells.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page  

1 of 23 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

*Budget 2021/2022 and Medium-Term Financial Strategy Update 

 

*Budget 2021/2022 and Medium-Term 

Financial Strategy Update  

For Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 18 January 2021 

 

Summary 

Lead Member: Councillor Tom Dawlings, Finance and Governance Portfolio Holder 

Lead Director: Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development 

Head of Service: Jane Fineman, Head of Finance and Procurement 

Report Author: Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development 

Classification: Public document (non-exempt) 

Wards Affected: All 

Approval Timetable Date 

Management Board 5 January 2021  

Portfolio Holder 5 January 2021 

Finance & Governance Cabinet Advisory 
Board 

12 January 2021 

Overview and Scrutiny 18 January 2021 

Cabinet 4 February 2021 

Full Council 24 February 2021 

Recommendations 

Officer / Committee recommendations as supported by the Portfolio Holder: 

1. That Council considers the changes to the base budget along with the 

assumptions and approach set out throughout the report; 

2. That Council considers the responses to the budget consultation in Appendix C; 

3. That Council approves the rolling forward of the capital programme including 

additional gross funding of £2,834,600 for new schemes listed within the report; 

and 

Page 27

Agenda Item 7



 

Page  

2 of 23 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

*Budget 2021/2022 and Medium-Term Financial Strategy Update 

 

4. That Council approves an increase in the ‘Basic Amount’ of Council Tax of £5.00 

per annum for a Band D property.  

 

 

Page 28

Agenda Item 7



 

Page  

3 of 23 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

*Budget 2021/2022 and Medium-Term Financial Strategy Update 

 

1. Purpose of Report and Executive Summary 

1.1 This report outlines the assumptions that have been built into the budget for 2021/22. 
 

1.2 Cabinet are asked to recommend this budget to full Council which includes the following 
main headlines: 
 

• The Covid-19 pandemic has resulted in the cost of providing local services 
being greater than the income generated. 

• Zero Revenue Support Grant from central Government to help fund local 
services. 

• Temporary use of £1,935,040 of reserves to balance the budget. 

• New capital investment schemes with a gross cost of £2,834,600. 
 

1.3 The draft budget was subject to four weeks of public consultation ending on 4 January 
2021. 

 
 

Members are reminded that Section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to any 
meeting where consideration is given to matters relating to, or which might affect, the calculation of 
Council Tax. 
 
Any Member of a Local Authority, who is liable to pay Council Tax, and who has any unpaid Council 
Tax amount overdue for at least two months, even if there is an arrangement to pay off the arrears, 
must declare the fact that he/she is in arrears and must not cast their vote on anything related to the 
Council’s Budget or Council Tax. 

 

2. Introduction and Background 

2.1 Cabinet received the first report leading to the setting of the 2021/22 budget at the 

meeting on 10 September 2020 entitled Budget Projection and Strategy which had 

also been considered by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. This was followed by 

the Budget Update report on 19 November 2020 and then the Draft Budget on 3 

December 2020, both of which had also been considered at the Finance & 

Governance Cabinet Advisory Board. 

Government Funding Settlement 

2.2 The Government’s four-year funding settlement ended in 2019/20 and a one year ‘roll 

over’ occurred for 2020/21 which again required the Council to be financially self-

Page 29

Agenda Item 7



 

Page  

4 of 23 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

*Budget 2021/2022 and Medium-Term Financial Strategy Update 

 

sufficient. Since 2010 when cuts to funding of Local Government commenced, the 

ability to fund local services continues to be dependent on growing the local economy 

and sharing in the proceeds of business rates growth. 

Spending Review (SR20) 

2.3 On 25 November 2020 the Chancellor published the one-year Spending Review (not a 

Comprehensive Spending Review as previously announced). The review did not 

contain any surprises for the Council.   

2.4 The Departmental Expenditure Limit (DEL) allocated to the Ministry of Housing 

Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) determines how much if any funding is 

to be allocated to Local Government.  

 

2.5 An update to the economic and fiscal forecasts has been published by the Office for 

Budget Responsibility (OBR) in November 2020 alongside the SR20. 

Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement 2021/22 

2.6 On 17 December 2020 the Government published the Provisional Local Government 

Finance Settlement which includes more detail of the funding available to individual 

councils. 

 

2.7 There were no major surprises in the provisional settlement which accords with the 

forecasts used in the Draft Budget. The publication of the technical supporting papers 

are still awaited but the main headlines for this Council are as follows: 

• Council Tax can increase by 2 per cent or £5 for those district councils with low 

council tax rates such as TWBC.  

• The Police and Crime Commissioner can increase Council Tax by up to £15, 

KCC up to 5 per cent and there is no limit on the ability of parishes to increase 

council tax. 

• TWBC will receive £859,958 from the New Homes Bonus (NHB) scheme 

compared to £1,160,279 for 2020/21. This will be the final year of new awards 

under the current NHB scheme. 

• Revenue Support Grant will be increased in-line with inflation (this Council will 

still receive zero). 

• The share of business rates growth will continue for another year and this 

Council will continue to be part of the Kent Business Rates Pool.   

• A new Lower Tier Services Grant of £101,131 will be received to pay towards 

the cost of Homelessness, Planning, Waste and Leisure. 

• The headline increase by the Government is that Core Spending Power will 

increase for Local Government by 4.5 per cent. This is misleading and 

assumes that the tax base will increase, which will not be the case due to the 

rise in claimants for Single Person Discount and the Council Tax Reduction 

Scheme, resulting in a reduction to the tax base. MHCLG were notified of this 

inaccurate basis of their calculations. The corrected calculation is that this 

council’s spending power will reduce by 0.9 per cent compared to 2020/21.  

 

Page 30

Agenda Item 7



 

Page  

5 of 23 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

*Budget 2021/2022 and Medium-Term Financial Strategy Update 

 

 

2.8 The provisional settlement is subject to consultation which ends on 16 January 2021. 

The Council will continue to lobby for greater local decision-making and more 

appropriate funding distribution that reflects the higher cost of providing local services 

within the South East especially on a very lean base. The settlement is just for a single 

year which will continue to cause uncertainty and hinder medium-term financial 

planning. 

New Homes Bonus (NHB) 

2.9 The NHB scheme was introduced by the Government in 2011 as a “powerful, 

predictable, permanent incentive to reward the delivery of housing growth”, funded by 

a £900 million top-slice of Revenue Support Grant. 

2.10 Since 2011 various amendments have been made to dilute the financial incentive and 

in advance of consulting on changes the Government announced last year that in 

effect the current scheme will be phased out. The Secretary of State has confirmed 

that there will be a consultation later in the Spring on the ‘future of the housing 

incentive’ that will move towards ‘a new, more targeted approach that rewards local 

authorities where they are ambitious in delivering the homes we need’.  

2.11 A final new allocation will be made in respect of 2021/22 for £454,000 along with the 

remaining legacy payments of £406,000 in 2021/22 and £222,000 in 2022/23. The 

Council has prudently not included NHB within the base budget and transfers any 

receipts into reserves. The impact of Covid-19 now necessitates using NHB to reduce 

the use of reserves in balancing the revenue budget. This is illustrated below:  

          

           

  16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23  

  £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s  

           

 Year 11 - Net      454   

 Year 10 - Net     571     

 Year 9 - Net    222 222 222 222  

 Year 8 - Net   184 184 184 184   

 Year 7 - Net  183 183 183 183     

 Year 6  554 554 554 554      

 Year 5  135 135 135       

 Year 4  96 96        

 Year 3  390 390        

 Year 2  339         

 Year 1  259               

 NHB Allocation 1,773 1,358 1,056 1,143 1,160 860 222   

 NHB in Budget 1,773 1,358 1,056 921        

 

NHB to/(from) 
Reserves    222 1,160 (860) (222)   

           

          

Page 31

Agenda Item 7



 

Page  

6 of 23 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

*Budget 2021/2022 and Medium-Term Financial Strategy Update 

 

2.12 Since the creation of NHB this Council has received tens of millions of pounds less 

funding from NHB than neighbouring councils who have delivered far greater levels of 

house building which is shown below: 

 

Retained Business Rates 

2.13 In July 2020 HM Treasury undertook a call for evidence on the fundamental review of 

the business rates system. The planned revaluation of business rates has been 

postponed until April 2023 and is to be based on the property market on 1 April 2021 

so will reflect the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on the commercial rental market. 

2.14 The reset of the business rates baseline, that determines the Settlement Funding 

Assessment (SFA) for local authorities has been postponed along with the Fair 

Funding Review. However, the Government has accepted the Kent Business Rates 

Pool which includes this council for 2021/22. 

2.15 The continuation of business rate pooling using the existing baseline will enable this 

Council to continue to retain a share in the proceeds of business rates growth for a 

further year. The previous additional retained business rate growth received by this 

Council is shown below:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

£0

£5,000,000

£10,000,000

£15,000,000

£20,000,000

£25,000,000

£30,000,000

£35,000,000

£40,000,000

Cumulative New Homes Bonus Payments to 
2021/22 (Year 11)

Page 32

Agenda Item 7



 

Page  

7 of 23 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

*Budget 2021/2022 and Medium-Term Financial Strategy Update 

 

Year 
Type of Business Rate 

Retention 
Local Growth Share 

TWBC Share 
of Growth  

 
£000s  

2015/16 Kent Pool  50% 64 
 

2016/17 Kent Pool  50% 595 
 

2017/18 Kent Pool  50% 1,700 
 

2018/19 Kent & Medway Pilot 100% 5,000 
 

2019/20 Kent Pool  50% 806 
 

2020/21 Kent Pool  50%  
 

2021/22 Kent Pool  50%  
 

  2022/23     System Reset (details TBC) TBC   
 

   8,165  

    
 

 
Type of Authority 

Local Business Rate 
Growth Share  

 

 Districts 40%  
 

 Kent County Council 9%  
 

 Kent Fire & Rescue Service 1%  
 

 Total 50%  
 

 Government 50%  
 

 

2.16 The Council has prudently not included the proceeds of business rates growth within 

the base budget and transfers any receipts into reserves. The proceeds of growth will 

be used to reduce the use of reserves at the end of the financial year as part of the 

business rate pool reconciliation. 

Financial Strategy – Covid-19 Pandemic 

2.17 The Covid-19 Pandemic is a health and financial emergency and unlike other events 

there is no historical data on which to make reliable forecasts. The crisis is having 

immediate effects on councils’ budgets across the sector because of increases in 

expenditure and reductions in income from sales, fees and charges (SFCs) along with 

commercial activities.  

2.18 Reductions in council tax and business rates collected this year will feed through to 

budgets over the medium-term. The Government will compel billing authorities to 

spread the deficit in the Collection Fund over three years to reduce the impact on the 

revenue budget in 2021/22.   

2.19 From the outset of the crisis the S151 Officer formulated a financial strategy to reflect 

the fluid nature of the situation and to be used to update projections monthly with 

Cabinet retaining the ability to revise the budget on a quarterly basis reflecting: 

• Actual monthly outturn of income and expenditure compared to budget 

forecasts, 

• Economic data including unemployment, collection rates, businesses activity 

and local footfall; and  

• Government support packages and other announcements. 

 

Page 33

Agenda Item 7



 

Page  

8 of 23 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

*Budget 2021/2022 and Medium-Term Financial Strategy Update 

 

2.20 This approach still holds true and accords with the Government’s advice that councils 

should not make drastic budgetary decisions due to the pandemic and should use 

their reserves as the government will provide councils with the funds needed. 

 

National Economic Forecasts 

2.21 The country is experiencing the deepest recession in over a hundred years and 

forecasters are having difficulty in modelling the severity and longevity of the 

economic impact caused by the pandemic. 

2.22 The UK suffered its biggest slump on record between April and June 2020 as 

coronavirus lockdown measures pushed the country officially into recession. The 

Office for National Statistics (ONS) said that the economy bounced back in June 2020 

as government restrictions on movement started to ease. However, the economic 

recovery is not being felt by all sectors and different parts of the country are now 

under further economic and social restrictions. 

2.23 The Bank of England’s (BoE) Monetary Policy Report and the Financial Sustainability 

Report for August 2020 said that interest rates will be kept low (currently 0.10 per 

cent) and that the BoE remain ready to act to help households and businesses cope 

with cash-flow pressures. 

2.24 The BoE had originally forecast a ‘v’ shaped recovery with the economy returning 

quickly to pre-covid levels. However, in August 2020 the BoE tempered its previous 

optimism over the UK’s recovery from the coronavirus crisis, with new forecasts 

showing that output will not recover to pre-covid 19 levels until the end of 2021.The 

recent resurgence of coronavirus cast doubt on this forecast and will further threaten 

the rate of recovery. 

Local Economic Forecasts 

2.25 The impact of coronavirus varies depending on the type of business and location of 

operation. The borough has been very resilient during previous recessions with the 

impact being less severe and the rate of recovery quicker than the national situation. 

However, this recession is like no other and the borough remains exposed to the 

change in peoples working lives and the impact on the local economy. 

2.26 The actual reduction to major income streams is shown below and provides an 

indication of the local economic recovery which appears to be more accurate than 

national attempts to call the shape of the economic recovery.   

Page 34

Agenda Item 7



 

Page  

9 of 23 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

*Budget 2021/2022 and Medium-Term Financial Strategy Update 

 

 

2.27 The major influence over the size of the budget deficit for 2021/22 will be determined 

by the point at which the monthly reduction in income appears to level off. Current 

projections are that by March 2021 the monthly loss of income will be £250,000 per 

month and whilst the rate of recovery will not be linear this would indicate a total loss 

of income of £3 million over the original budgeted levels for the financial year 2020/21. 

The situation remains fluid and projections will continue to be updated in accordance 

with the budget strategy. 

2.28 A summary of local economic data is shown below: 

• Unemployment Rate for November 2020 for the borough is 4.4 per cent (3,125 
claimants) and the 3rd lowest in Kent where the average is 6.0 per cent. 

 

• Council Tax collection rates to December 2020 are down 1.1 per cent - The 
Furlough scheme is now set to continue until the end of April 2021. 

 

• Business Rates collection rates to December 2020 are down 0.6 per cent - The 
government support scheme means that half of all businesses are not required 
to pay business rates this year – The quarterly rentals due in January 2021 will 
be crucial along with the Christmas trading period. 

 

• Empty business properties were 335 in December 2020 compared to 314 
properties pre-covid. 

 

 

 

 

(1,200,000)

(1,000,000)

(800,000)

(600,000)

(400,000)

(200,000)

0

Monthly Lost Income 

Page 35

Agenda Item 7



 

Page  

10 of 23 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

*Budget 2021/2022 and Medium-Term Financial Strategy Update 

 

Budget Breakdown 

2.29 The Council provides a diverse range of services across the Borough which is 

estimated to cost £66.6 million. The services are provided either by contractors, 

through partnership with other councils or by directly employing staff. The budget is 

based on an approved establishment of 316.50 Full Time Equivalents (FTEs).The 

following pie charts show the budgeted revenue expenditure and how this is to be 

funded. 

Pie Chart of 2021/22 Revenue Expenditure 

 

Pie Chart of 2021/22 Revenue Income 

 

Employees, 
£15.7m

Shared Services, 
£2.3m

Transport, £0.1m

Premises, £5.3m

Supplies & 
Services, £5.5m

External 
Contracts, £5.1m

Housing Benefits 
& CT Support, 

£32.3m

Finance Charges, 
£0.3m

Benefit Subsidy 
£32.3m

RVP Rent £0.9m

Sales, Fees & 
Charges £18.2m

Interest £0.4m

New Homes 
Bonus £0.9m

Government 
Funding £1.1m

Retained 
Business Rates 

£2.4m

Council Tax
£8.5m

Transfer From 
Reserves £1.9m

Page 36

Agenda Item 7



 

Page  

11 of 23 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

*Budget 2021/2022 and Medium-Term Financial Strategy Update 

 

2.30 A breakdown of the budget by service is provided in Appendix B. A subjective 

breakdown of the current budget per cost centre is available on the Council’s website. 

Budget Projection 2021/22 

2.31 The current year’s budget forms the base budget upon which projections are made for 

the next five years to reflect the Council’s Five-Year Plan and other strategies. The 

projection model has been updated to reflect expected changes at this time and is 

summarised in Appendix A. 

2.32 The key variances over the current budget are shown below: 

Budget February 2021  

 £000s 

Employment Costs 309 

Transport (4) 

Premises  
Additional business rates  85 

Additional planned maintenance & responsive 
repairs 90 

Additional grounds maintenance costs 120 

Supplies & Services  
Additional waste and recycling costs 104 

Reduction in photocopying and printing costs (24) 

Income  
Additional Council Tax Income (Net)  (60) 

Collection Fund Deficit 65 

Additional Garden Waste income (96) 

Reduction in interest 333 

Reduction in Sales, Fees & Charges 1,974 

Local Services Grant (101) 

New Homes Bonus  (860) 

Funding Gap to be met from reserves 1,935 

 

Budget Strategy 

2.33 There remains a budget gap for 2021/22 of £1,935,000 which, if left unmanaged, would 
need to be funded from reserves. In normal times the use of general reserves is 
unsustainable over the longer-term which led Cabinet in 2012 to set a definition of a 
balanced budget as follows: 

 
“Where ongoing expenditure is met from fees, charges, government grant and 

council tax with only the use of earmarked reserves being used to meet one-off 

priority expenditure.”  

2.34 These are not normal times, and the Council will need to continue to meet as a 

priority; the impact of the ongoing national emergency, the Council’s responsibilities 

under the Civil Contingencies Act 2004 and the provision of statutory services. It is 

therefore, appropriate at a time of a national emergency to temporarily use reserves to 

balance the budget.  

Page 37

Agenda Item 7



 

Page  

12 of 23 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

*Budget 2021/2022 and Medium-Term Financial Strategy Update 

 

 

Council Tax Strategy 

2.35 One source of funding for the provision of local services is council tax. This Council 

has historically had a policy of very low council tax levels and the strategy is for 

council tax to increase up to the threshold (the ‘cap’) for triggering a referendum. This 

is what the government assumes councils will do in their assessment of whether 

councils have sufficient spending power to delivery local services. 

2.36 In previous years, the most efficient authorities such as this Council have been able to 

increase council tax up to £5.00 a year rather than the cap of 2 per cent. This has 

been set out in the Provisional Local Government Settlement 2021/22 and is due to be 

confirmed by Parliament in February 2021. The Government assumes this Council will 

increase council tax by the maximum permitted in their assessment of this Council’s 

available financial resources. 

2.37 The Government has set different ‘caps’ for the various authorities that comprise the 

council tax charge appearing on the bills for this borough, as follows. 

• Kent County Council, 2 per cent ‘core’ plus 3 per cent for adult social care 

• Kent Police and Crime Commissioner, £15 (7.4 per cent) 

• Kent Fire and Rescue Service, 2 per cent 

• Parish and Town Councils, no ‘cap’ 

 
2.38 If all authorities set their council tax level in accordance with their cap this will further 

widen the differential between the borough council’s council tax charge and other 

council tax raising bodies as shown below: 

 

 

£0

£10

£20

£30

£40

£50

£60

£70

£80

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

KCC Police TWBC Fire Parishes

Breakdown of Council Tax Bill Increases

Page 38

Agenda Item 7



 

Page  

13 of 23 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

*Budget 2021/2022 and Medium-Term Financial Strategy Update 

 

2.39 The MTFS assumes that Council Tax will increase by £5 annually. It will be for Full 

Council in February 2021 to decide the level of council tax. 

Fees and Charges 

2.40 For the fees and charges which are not imposed by central government a report has 

been approved by Cabinet on 19 November 2020. 

Car Parking Charges  

2.41 There are no plans to increase pay and display car parking charges. 

Staff Savings and Efficiencies 

2.42 Directors/Heads of Services and Portfolio Holders have been busy trying to identify 

further efficiency options to reduce the cost of their services and to increase income. 

These discussions continue and need refining before they can be submitted for 

inclusion in the budget or in the case of staffing changes to the General Purposes 

Committee. 

Digital Transformation 

2.43 It is not possible to keep working harder and faster with fewer resources and still 

provide safe, effective services. The Council will need to find new ways of working 

smarter and deliver services in a more digitally efficient form which meets with the way 

the public now interact with service providers. The Council has a Digital Services and 

Transformation Team in place to improve operational delivery and transform the way 

that services are provided. Details of these projects are reported quarterly to Cabinet 

and the resulting efficiencies will be incorporated into the budget-setting process.   

Spending Power 

2.44 The Government has developed a universal benchmarking indicator called ‘Spending 

Power’ to enable comparisons between councils of the income they receive from 

national and local taxpayers. This indicator appears to be the best available for 

identifying how much each council receives per household to provide local services. 

The graph below shows that using the Government’s own calculation TWBC has the 

third lowest spending power in Kent at just £245 per household (£239 in 2019/20). 

Page 39

Agenda Item 7



 

Page  

14 of 23 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

*Budget 2021/2022 and Medium-Term Financial Strategy Update 

 

 

 

Capital and Revenue Reserves 

2.45 The Medium-Term Financial Strategy maintains the following as an adequate level of 

reserves: 

  Minimum 

General Reserves £4.0 million 

 

2.46 The reserves and balances are currently forecast to meet the above levels although 

maintaining this position relies on delivering not just a balanced budget in 2021/22 but 

a sustainable budget for the future. 

Capital Programme 

2.47 At the Full Council meeting on 26 February 2020 the capital programme for 2020/21 to 

2023/24 was approved. 

2.48 Over the course of the past year the Council has made significant efforts to dispose of 

surplus land and property identified in the Asset Management Plan (AMP) with a view 

both to deliver capital receipts and to reduce operational running costs. The AMP 

provides a framework for further such work over the coming year and this work will be 

funded from a proportion of the capital receipts received (subject to the necessary 

approval). 

 200

 250

 300

 350

£ Core Spending Power per Dwelling 2021/22

Page 40

Agenda Item 7



 

Page  

15 of 23 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

*Budget 2021/2022 and Medium-Term Financial Strategy Update 

 

2.49 The four-year capital programme will be rolled forward for another year. Any 

subsequent additions will be considered using the formal application approval process 

throughout the year. 

2.50 Below is a summary of new applications to the capital programme which will require 

Full Council to agree in principle the additional total gross project funding of 

£2,834,600. The decision to procure each scheme and the source of funding will be 

determined by the S151 Officer. 

New Schemes  
Total Gross 
Project Cost 

£ 

Earmarked 
Reserve 
Funding 

£ 

Cap & Rev 
Initiatives 

Res. Funding 
£ 

External 
Funding inc. 

S106 
£ 

A LIST - Health & Safety, essential priority or externally funded. 

Crescent Road Properties 515,000 0 0 (515,000) 

Dunorlan Park Play Area 18,730 0 0 (18,730) 

North Farm Depot CCTV 20,000 0 (20,000) 0 

Southwood Road Field Drainage 17,440 0 0 (17,440) 

Financial Management System Upgrade 47,000 0 (47,000) 0 

Cinderhill Additional Plot 26,500 0 0 (26,500) 

Cinderhill Water Meters  20,130 (20,130) 0 0 

Great Hall Car Park Lift 50,000 0 (50,000) 0 

Great Hall Car Park Ventilation 35,000 0 (35,000) 0 

Hawkenbury Pitch Lighting 15,000 (15,000) 0 0 

North Farm Depot Lighting 27,000 (27,000) 0 0 

North Farm Lane Resurfacing 38,500 0 (38,500) 0 

Warwick Road Car Park 50,000 0 (50,000) 0 

TOTAL 880,300 (62,130) (240,500) (577,670) 

     
B LIST 

Assembly Hall Works: 

Assembly Hall Lighting Infrastructure 115,000 0 (115,000) 0 

Assembly Hall (Windows) 110,000 0 (110,000) 0 

Assembly Hall Bar Ventilation 20,000 0 (20,000) 0 

Car Parks Works:         

Great Hall Car Park Lighting 50,000 0 (50,000) 0 

Meadow Road Car Park 530,000 0 (530,000) 0 

Sports Centre Works:         

TW Sports Centre Building Management 
System 220,000 0 (220,000) 0 

TW Sports Centre CCTV 50,000 0 (50,000) 0 

TW Sports Centre Gas Heater 90,000 0 (90,000) 0 

TW Sports Centre Stair Lift 16,000 0 (16,000) 0 

Weald Sports Centre Air Conditioning 15,000 0 (15,000) 0 

Others:         

Town Hall (Windows) 505,000 0 (505,000) 0 

Cranbrook Museum 27,800 0 (27,800) 0 

Crematorium Wall and Paving 205,500 0 (205,500) 0 

TOTAL 1,954,300 0 (1,954,300) 0 

     
GRAND TOTAL 2,834,600   (2,194,800)   

 

2.51 The significant recurring cost of; planned maintenance, responsive repairs and the 

above capital investment in the Council’s Civic Buildings, Car Parks and Leisure 

Centres is not financially sustainable over the medium-term and a solution that 

provides value for money needs to be determined. 

Page 41

Agenda Item 7



 

Page  

16 of 23 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

*Budget 2021/2022 and Medium-Term Financial Strategy Update 

 

2.52 The Council has no external debt but with reserves largely allocated it will be 

necessary to commence borrowing to fund additional capital schemes. The Council 

does have the potential for using new capital receipts, building up usable reserves and 

access to internal and external borrowing. The determination as to which source of 

funding is most appropriate is a technical judgement that will be made by the S151 

Officer.  

2.53 In addition to the revenue and capital budgets, the Council has earmarked reserves 

which form part of the Budget and Policy Framework and are available to fund the 

specific purpose of the reserve in accordance with the virement procedure rules. The 

projected balances of these reserves are shown below and assume that the revenue 

budget is balanced from 2022/23 without further utilisation of reserves.  

 

 Includes both A List and B List for Capital 2021/22 

 

31-Mar-
20 

31-Mar-
21 

31-Mar-
22 

31-Mar-
23 

31-Mar-
24 

31-Mar-
25  

Actual Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast 
 

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's 

General Fund 4,090  4,090  4,090  4,090  4,090  4,090  

Earmarked Reserves 11,261  10,561  6,967  6,492  6,017  5,517  

2020/21 Budget Deficit 0  -2,216  -2,216  -2,216  -2,216  -2,216  

2021/22 Budget Deficit 0  0  -1,935  -1,935  -1,935  -1,935  

Capital Grants & Contributions 1,802  1,802  1,802  1,802  1,802  1,802  

Capital Receipts Reserve 1,000  2,570  1,000  1,000  1,000  1,000  

Amelia Scott Capital Receipt 3,076  6,131  6,131  6,131  6,131  6,131  

Amelia Scott Capital Spend 0  -6,131  -6,131  -6,131  -6,131  -6,131  

Total Reserves 21,229  16,807  9,708  9,233  8,758  8,258  

Outstanding Financing       

33 Monson Road  -1,567  -1,496  -1,425  -1,354  -1,282  -1,211  

Dowding House  -2,049  -1,960  -1,870  -1,781  -1,692  -1,603  

The Lodge, Calverley Park -511  -489  -468  -447  -426  -404  

Royal Victoria Place  -1,007  -966  -924  -882  -840  -798  

Waste Bins & Caddies  -665  -598  -532  -465  -399  -333  

Civic Site Essential Works 0  -1,442  -1,866  -1,789  -1,712  -1,635  
Amelia Scott (additional 
funding) 0  0  -2,000  -1,920  -1,840  -1,760  

Total Outstanding Financing -5,799  -6,951  -9,085  -8,638  -8,191  -7,744  

Note: Schemes not funded from reserves need to be charged to revenue and this repayment 
is reflected in the reduction in financing over the life of the asset.   

 

2.54 The Council does not have any external debt but with borrowing costs reducing to 

record low levels the S151 Officer has the flexibility to take advantage of this situation 

and borrow as an alternative to utilising capital receipts. 

 

 

Page 42

Agenda Item 7



 

Page  

17 of 23 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

*Budget 2021/2022 and Medium-Term Financial Strategy Update 

 

Budget Calculations and Adequacy of Reserves 

2.55 In accordance with Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 the Chief Financial 

Officer is required to report formally to the Council on the robustness of the estimates 

and adequacy of reserves. It should be noted that Section 26 of the Act gives the 

Secretary of State power to set a minimum level of reserves for which an authority 

must provide in setting its budget. 

2.56 At the time of writing this report, I am satisfied with the robustness of the estimates. 

With regards to the adequacy of the reserves the Council must act within the next 24 

months to bring the cost and demand of providing local services to within the level of 

income that can be generated and to balance the revenue budget without reliance on 

reserves.  

2.57 The Council will also need to reduce the drain on reserves from its property assets 

and to identify an agreed way forward with regards to the Town Hall and Assembly 

Hall Theatre.  

2.58 Assets which can be sold and are either generating little income or which are 

underutilised should be identified for disposal to replenish the Council’s reserves to 

pre-pandemic levels.    

 

Lee M Colyer FCPFA 

Director of Finance, Policy and Development (S151 Officer) 

 

2.59 The Council’s Medium-Term Financial Strategy 2017/18 to 2021/22 (MTFS) was 

agreed by Full Council on 22 February 2017 and projected the financial impact of the 

Council’s current and proposed policies in the short and medium-term. This report and 

the projections in Appendix A will form part of the MTFS Update for 2021/22. 

Risk Factors 

2.60 It is important to recognise that there are many factors that can affect some budgets 

and where variances could be significant requiring closer budget management and 

action; these areas include: 

Risk Area Management 

Covid-19 Pandemic 

The pandemic is a health emergency which has resulted in the 
greatest recession in a century. Further economic and health 
restrictions will continue to have significant and fundamental 
budgetary implications. 

Page 43

Agenda Item 7



 

Page  

18 of 23 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

*Budget 2021/2022 and Medium-Term Financial Strategy Update 

 

Climate Emergency 

In July 2019 Full Council declared a climate emergency. A climate 
cross-party task force has been established and a dedicated report 
is due with actions to make the Borough carbon neutral by 2030. 
No financial requirements have been identified or provided for 
within the Medium-Term Financial Strategy. The cross-party group 
agreed to lobby central government to provide additional resources 
and to grant the necessary freedoms to deliver the above ambition.   

Brexit 

The decision of the UK to Leave the European Union is classed by 
the Government as a planned event. Implications continue to be 
monitored and are incorporated within Risk Scenario 6: Service 
Interruption on the Council’s Strategic Risk Register.  

The latest information is maintained by the Kent Resilience Forum;  
https://www.kentprepared.org.uk  

Growth 

The Government is clear that local authorities have a responsibility 
to grow their local economies through new housing, culture and 
businesses.  
 
The private sector is very selective in identifying those areas in 
which to invest and there is tough competition between destination 
towns. The borough needs to be viewed as ‘open for business’ and 
receptive to growth if it is to retain and attract residents and 
businesses and to deliver wider economic benefits.  
 
It is important to avoid a lack of confidence by the private sector to 
invest in the borough. 

Market Failure 

The Council is required to procure services and is reliant on a free 
and competitive market to obtain best value. In some 
circumstances the contractors may be unwilling or unable to take 
on the risk of providing services without significant cost increases 
in existing or new contracts. 

Property Assets 

The cost of maintaining property assets is currently around 10 per 
cent of the Net Revenue Budget and annually consumes around 
£1- £3 million in capital expenditure. Despite this, some property 
assets have reached the end of their useful life and are at risk of 
further responsive costs to keep them operational. 

Planning Inquiry 
Costs 

Whilst the primacy of planning is paramount, decisions taken by 
the Planning Committee can lead to formal planning inquiries which 
have the potential for substantial costs to arise which are not 
budgeted for. 

Business Rates 
Retention Scheme 

Part of the Council's funding is now linked to the amount of 
business rates due in the Borough. However, the Government has 
also transferred the liability for business rate appeals already in the 
system. To help mitigate the impact of appeals the Council 
maintains a Grant Volatility Reserve and is part of a Kent Business 
Rate Pool.  

Economic Conditions 
The majority of the Council’s income is derived from sources which 
are subject to the prevailing economic conditions. 

Page 44

Agenda Item 7

https://www.kentprepared.org.uk/
https://www.kentprepared.org.uk/


 

Page  

19 of 23 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

*Budget 2021/2022 and Medium-Term Financial Strategy Update 

 

Economic conditions can also alter the demand for council services 
and those provided by partners and the voluntary sector. 

Employee Costs 

The move to local pay offers some protection but a watching brief 
is still required especially regarding the vacancy factor.  Changes 
to pensions, National Insurance and the introduction of an 
apprentice levy have been included where known but such further 
changes can have a significant cost.  

  

Demand for some professionals exceeds supply and this is 
exacerbated by the higher salaries available in London and parts of 
the private sector. 

Parking Income  Dependant on usage and the economic environment. 

Planning and 
Licensing Income 

Dependant on the economy and the impact of legislative changes 
which limit the full recovery of the cost of providing these services. 

Crematorium Income Dependant on mortality rates and competition. 

Contracts Dependant on inflation indices and a competitive market. 

Utilities Global supply and demand plus above inflation price rises. 

Land Charges 

The Infrastructure Bill was approved, paving the way for Local 
Land Charges to be centralised into a single computer system by 
2023/24. No details of how the Land Registry will provide the 
service have been released. 

Investment Returns 

New cash deposits are dependent on interest rates and levels of 
balances. 

  

Property investments are dependent on the type of asset and 
rental demands. 

Targeted Options to 
Reduce Net 
Expenditure 

Assumes that savings identified are delivered and there are no 
unintended consequences. 

Capital Receipts 
Capital is tied up in non-operational assets which if released will 
help to reduce the use of cash reserves to fund the capital 
programme. 

Government Policy 
and Announcements 
by Ministers 

There has been a significant increase in the volume of legislation 
and announcements which can undermine strategic planning and 
compromise budget assumptions. 

Page 45

Agenda Item 7



 

Page  

20 of 23 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

*Budget 2021/2022 and Medium-Term Financial Strategy Update 

 

Capital Programme 

Major capital schemes carry a significant risk which is managed 
through the Council’s Strategic Risk Register. 

  

The funding of capital can also have a significant impact on the 
revenue budget where external borrowing is required. 

 

National Policy and Legislative Changes 
 
2.61 The above forecasts are subject to changes from the following government activities: 

• The health and financial measures required for the Covid-19 Pandemic 

• The implications of the UK leaving the European Union 

• The Spending Review 2020 

• The Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement 2021/22; and  

• The White Paper on Local Government Reorganisation. 

3. Options Considered 

3.1  The budget-setting process is well rehearsed and has largely been successful in 

 delivering a balanced budget and engaging with the public. There may be other 

 alternatives but ultimately the Council must produce a budget which meets its 

 statutory responsibilities. 

4. Preferred Option and Reason 
4.1  This report is the fourth in the formal budget-setting process which has been informed 

 through consultation and research. Decisions on priorities and services will be 

 communicated on a regular basis. 

5. Consultation on Options 

5.1 Early public engagement is essential to arrive at suitable feedback which can be 

developed in time to be incorporated within the budget. Information has been been 

placed on the Council’s website along with articles in Local which allows members of 

the public, staff and businesses to provide their ideas for how to reduce spending and 

optimise income while protecting the quality of public services. 

5.2 The Cabinet Advisory Boards and the Overview and Scrutiny Committee continue to 

provide a good source of challenge in developing the budget along with the views of  

Parish Councils and the Royal Tunbridge Wells Town Forum. 

5.3 A budget survey has been undertaken to test the budget strategy of temporarily using 

reserves and protecting local services for 2021/22, whilst the Council focuses on 

responding to, and recovering from the national emergency. The survey also tested 

Page 46

Agenda Item 7



 

Page  

21 of 23 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

*Budget 2021/2022 and Medium-Term Financial Strategy Update 

 

the level of council tax increase the public felt appropriate and how to fund the local 

response to the climate change emergency.  

 
5.4 The context was explained that if the local economy does not recover to pre-pandemic 

levels then the cost of providing local services will exceed the level of income 

available. The public were asked how they would allocate funding across services that 

would deliver a balanced budget for 2022/23.  

 

5.5 The survey generated a good response rate of 575 (199 in 2020/21) with respondents 

coming from across the borough. Public opinion supported the temporary use of 

reserves (91 per cent) and the need to increase council tax by £5 for 2021/22 (74 per 

cent) and for 2022/23 (78 per cent). Opinion was evenly divided on whether there 

should be a larger increase in council tax than the proposed £5 to fund local services. 

 
5.6 The respondents indicated that they would support a reduction in all council services 

from 2022/23 to balance the budget apart from Community Safety and Public 

Conveniences. The respondents significantly reduced the level of funding for the 

following services compared to the proposed budget for 2021/22: 

 

• Committee, mayoral and member services 

• Museum 

• Planning and Building Control 

• Property and maintenance costs (to reduce this the council will need to sell 

buildings/assets)  

 
5.7 There was strong support for the principle of setting fees and charges locally (69 per 

cent) rather than being determined by central government which results in services 

such as Planning, and Licensing being subsidised by local council tax payers. 

 
5.8 There was agreement on the importance of climate change and recognition that action 

would require savings from existing budgets and increases in income, to fund the local 

response to the climate emergency.   

 
5.9 The results of the budget survey are contained in Appendix C and a post code map of 

respondents is shown in Appendix D.  

6. Implementation 

6.1  The budget proposals will be considered by the Finance and Governance Cabinet 

Advisory Board and the Overview and Scrutiny Committee in January 2021. Final 

proposals for the budget will be agreed by Cabinet in February 2021 and proposed for 

approval by Full Council in February 2021. 

Page 47

Agenda Item 7



 

Page  

22 of 23 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

*Budget 2021/2022 and Medium-Term Financial Strategy Update 

 

7. Appendices and Background Documents 

Appendices: 

• Appendix A: Five Year Budget Projections 

• Appendix B: Budget by Service 

• Appendix C: Budget Consultation Survey Responses 

• Appendix D: Budget Survey Postcode Map  

Background Papers: 

• None 

8. Cross Cutting Issues 

A. Legal (including the Human Rights Act) 

The Five-Year Plan and budget form part of the Council’s Policy Framework. 

Director of Finance, Policy and Development, 5 January 2021. 

B. Finance and Other Resources 

This report forms part of the Council’s Budget and Policy Framework. 

Director of Finance, Policy and Development, 5 January 2021. 

C. Staffing 

Where savings proposals impact on staff then this will be managed in accordance with 

Human Resources policies. 

Director of Finance, Policy and Development, 5 January 2021. 

D. Risk Management 

An assessment of the risk factors underpinning the budget will accompany the final budget 

report.  The Strategic Risk Register also includes a risk on funding streams which is being 

monitored by Cabinet and the Audit and Governance Committee. 

Director of Finance, Policy and Development, 5 January 2021. 

 

Page 48

Agenda Item 7



 

Page  

23 of 23 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

*Budget 2021/2022 and Medium-Term Financial Strategy Update 

 

E. Environment and Sustainability 

The budget has regard to the environmental sustainability priorities within the Five-Year Plan. 

Director of Finance, Policy and Development, 5 January 2021. 

F. Community Safety 

The budget has regard to the community safety priorities within the Five-Year Plan. 

Director of Finance, Policy and Development, 5 January 2021. 

G. Equalities 

Changes to service delivery may impact on equalities; however, head of service will ensure 

that an equality assessment is in place where this has been identified. 

Director of Finance, Policy and Development, 5 January 2021. 

H. Data Protection 

The budget has regard to the Data Protection requirements as set out within the Five-Year 

Plan. 

Director of Finance, Policy and Development, 5 January 2021. 

I. Health and Safety 

The budget has regard to Health and Safety obligations and priorities within the Five-Year 

Plan. 

Director of Finance, Policy and Development, 5 January 2021. 

J. Health and Wellbeing 

The budget has regard to the health and safety wellbeing priorities within the Five-Year Plan. 

Director of Finance, Policy and Development, 5 January 2021. 

Page 49

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



  5 YEAR BUDGET PROJECTIONS

Year
Annual (Surplus)

/ Deficit
Explanation

£000s

0 2021/22 1,935 Temporary use of reserves

1 2022/23 3,064 Impact of the pandemic and residual pressures

2 2023/24 4,246 Funding Review and end of NHB

3 2024/25 4,616 Inflation and actuarial review

4 2024/25 5,224 Inflation and demand pressures

5 2025/26 5,809 Inflation and demand pressures

NET 5 YEAR (SURPLUS)/ DEFICIT 24,894 IMPACT ON THE GENERAL FUND

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8 Additional £300,000 for each market review of pay.

9 Additional £100,000 for each triennial pension revaluation.

10 HM Land Registry will centralised local land charges in 2023/24

Inflationary pressures on contracts of 4 per cent each year.

The Comprehensive Spending Review is fiscally neutral

Major Assumptions

These projections assume Council Tax increases by £5 per year. 

The taxbase will remain unchanged.

Fees and Charges income is reduced by £3m then from 2022/23 increases by 3 per cent.

No year on year increase in car parking income.

Employment costs increase by 2.5 per cent each year.

H:\Corp\Committ\Committee\Committee Meetings\CAB Finance & Governance\2020-21\12 January 2021\Reports\Budget and MTFS 2021-

22\Appendix A Budget 2021_22

Page 51

Appendix A



This page is intentionally left blank



BUDGET PER SERVICE

Budget

Code
Description

2020/21

Budget 1

2021/22

Budget 1
Variance

£ £ £

5001 Chief Executive 181,910 181,820 (90)

5002 Director of Finance, Policy & Development 150,620 149,660 (960)

5003 Director of Change & Communities 132,840 132,740 (100)

5010 Head of Finance & Procurement (1,689,120) 479,560 2,168,680

5011 Mid Kent Client Services 1,759,540 1,958,270 198,730

5012 Head of HR, Customer Service & Culture 1,845,810 1,995,630 149,820

5013 Head of Housing, Health & Environment 4,671,110 4,908,490 237,380

5018 Head of Economic Development & Property 335,720 424,330 88,610

5020 Head of Planning 984,840 1,191,910 207,070

5024 Head of Policy & Governance 1,308,350 1,306,780 (1,570)

5025 Head of Facilities & Community Hubs 1,187,040 1,218,210 31,170

5026 Head of Digital Services & Communications 785,090 818,850 33,760

Budget sub-total per Service 11,653,750 14,766,250 3,112,500

5032 Capital Adjustments 291,570 290,040 (1,530)

5035-7 Net Investment Income (783,610) (450,420) 333,190

5046/9 Transfer (from) to reserves 1,727,730 (1,935,040) (3,662,770)

Net Budget Requirement 12,889,440 12,670,830 (218,610)

5040 Retained Business Rates & Government Grants (4,353,110) (4,171,040) 182,070

5042 Council Tax (8,503,880) (8,564,290) (60,410)

5043 Collection Fund (Surplus)/Deficit (32,450) 64,500 96,950

Revenue Budget 0 0 0

H:\Corp\Committ\Committee\Committee Meetings\CAB Finance & Governance\2020-21\12 January 2021\Reports\Budget and MTFS 2021-22\Appendix B 

Budget per Service 2021_22

Page 53

Appendix B



This page is intentionally left blank



1/4/2021 Overview, using reserves, increasing CT and local charging

1/1

04/12/2020 04/01/2021

Responses
received

575
Would you support using council reserves for one year to balance the
budget, rather than reducing services?

0

200

400

600

yes no

Do you agree that the council should increase Council Tax by £5 for
2021/22?

0

500

Yes No Not sure

Do you agree that the council should increase Council Tax by
£5 for 2022/23?

0

100

200

300

400

500

Yes No Not sure

Would you support an increase in Council Tax of more than £5
to protect services?

0

200

Yes No Not sure

Would you support the principle of the council being able to set charges
locally for services?

0

100

200

300

400

yes not sure no

P
age 55

A
ppendix C



Budget Survey Funding Allocation of £100 2021/22 2022/23
£ £

Bereavement services -8 -5.24 -35%
Committee, mayoraland member services 15 5.17 -66%
Community Centres 4 3.61 -10%
Community Safety 4 4.03 1%
Economic Development 4 3.86 -4%
Environmental Health 7 5.17 -26%
Environmental Protection 7 5.36 -23%
Gateway customer services 5 3.9 -22%
Housing and homelessness 21 18.22 -13%
Parks  and open spaces 16 13.18 -18%
Museum 7 3.88 -45%
Parking -17 -12.74 -25%
Planning and building control 20 12.27 -39%
Property and maintenance costs 10 7.02 -30%
Public conveniences 2 2.18 9%
Sports and leisure centres 5 4.84 -3%
Rubbish and recycling 13 11.95 -8%
Street cleaning 12 10.27 -14%
Theatre 6 5.29 -12%

-20 -15 -10 -5 0 5 10 15 20 25

Bereavement services
Committee, mayoraland member services

Community Centres
Community Safety

Economic Development
Environmental Health

Environmental Protection
Gateway customer services
Housing and homelessness

Parks  and open spaces

Museum
Parking

Planning and building control
Property and maintenance costs

Public conveniences
Sports and leisure centres

Rubbish and recycling
Street cleaning

Theatre

Budget Survey Funding Preferences

2022/23 £ 2021/22 £

P
age 56

A
ppendix C



1/4/2021 Equalities Data

1/1

What is your sex?

0

100

200

300

Female Male Prefer
not to

say

Do you have a disability?

0

100

200

300

400

500

No Prefer
not to

say

Yes

What is your age group?

0

50

100

45-54 55-64 35-44 65-74 Prefer
not to

say

25-34 Over
75

18-24

Which ethnic groups do you belong to?

0

100

200

300

400

500

White - B
…

Prefer not to
 s…

White - O
ther

White - Ir
ish

Asian or A
sian…

Asian or A
sian…

Asian or A
sian…

Black/
Afric

an/…

Asian or A
sian…

Black/
Afric

an/…

Mixe
d/M

ultip
l…

Mixe
d/M

ultip
l…

Mixe
d/M

ultip
l…

Other ethnic g
…

P
age 57

A
ppendix C



1/4/2021 Climate Change

1/1

How important or unimportant is the issue of climate change to you
personally?

0

50

100

150

200

250

Very
important

Fairly
important

Neither
important nor
unimportant

Fairly
unimportant

Very
unimportant

Which services would you be willing to reduce/remove or increase the prices for, in order to redirect funds to support climate change initiatives?

0

100

200

300

400

Committe
e

Museum

Planning and buildin…
Parkin

g

Bereavement se
rvic

es

Property 
and develop…

Gateway cu
sto

mer se
…

Theatre

Economic d
evelopment

Maintenance of parks
…

Community 
centres

Public c
onveniences

Community 
safety a

n…

Stre
et cl

eaning servic
es

Enviro
nmental health …

Recre
ation

Housin
g and homeles…

Enviro
nmental protec…

Rubbish
 and recyc

lin…

P
age 58

A
ppendix C



 

P
age 59

A
ppendix D



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Page  

1 of 1 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Poverty Task and Finish Group: Update 

 

Poverty Task and Finish Group: Update 

For Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 18 January 2021 

 

Verbal Report 

To receive a verbal update. 

Page 61

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page  

1 of 2 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Work Programme 

 

Work Programme 

For Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 18 January 2021 

 

Scheduled items for future meetings 

29 March 2021   (Agenda Publication: 19 March 2021) 

(rearranged from 5 April) 

• Portfolio Holder Update: Communities and Wellbeing 

• Community Safety Partnership Plan 

 

14 June 2021    (Agenda Publication 4 June 2021) 

• Portfolio Holder Update: Leader of the Council (Planning and Transportation) 
 

26 July 2021    (Agenda Publication: 16 July 2021) 

• Portfolio Holder Update: Culture, Leisure and Economic Development 
 

27 September 2021  (Agenda Publication: 17 September 2021) 

• Portfolio Holder Update: 
 

22 November 2021   (Agenda Publication: 12 November 2021) 

• Portfolio Holder Update: Finance and Governance 

• Draft Budget 

 

17 January 2022   (Agenda Publication: 7 January 2022) 

• Portfolio Holder Update: Sustainability 

 

Page 63

Agenda Item 9



4 April 2022  (Agenda Publication: 25 March 2022) 

• Portfolio Holder Update: Communities and Wellbeing 

• Community Safety Partnership Plan 
 

Unscheduled topics 

• Equality Policy Statement and Action Plan 

Page 64

Agenda Item 9



 

Page  

1 of 1 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Urgent Business 

 

Urgent Business 

For Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 18 January 2021 

 

Procedural Item 

To consider any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent, for the reasons to be 

stated, in accordance with Section 100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972. 

Page 65

Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page  

1 of 1 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Date of the Next Meeting 

 

Date of the Next Meeting 

For Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 18 January 2021

 

Procedural Item 

To note that the next scheduled meeting is Monday 29 March 2021. 

Page 67

Agenda Item 11



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Apologies for Absence
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Notification of Persons Registered to Speak
	4 Minutes of the meeting dated 23 November 2020
	5 Items Called-In
	6 Portfolio Holder Update - Sustainability
	6 Appendix A - Statement (Cllr Bailey)

	7 Budget 2021/2022 and Medium Term Financial Strategy Update
	7 Appendix A - Budget 2021_22
	7 Appendix B - Budget per Service 2021_22
	7 Appendix C - Budget Consultation 2021_22
	7 Appendix D - Budget Survey Responses

	8 Poverty Task and Finish Group: Update
	9 Work Programme
	10 Urgent Business
	11 Date of the next meeting

